

Collective Bargaining Agreement

Between the

Sandy Valley Local Board of Education

And the

Ohio Association of Public School Employees, Local #450

July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS

Article 1	Recognition	1
Article 2	Board Rights	1
Article 3	Association Dues / Service Fee	1 - 3
Article 4	Negotiations	3 - 6
Article 5	Grievance Procedure	6 - 9
Article 6	Seniority and Job Posting	9 - 12
Article 7	Reduction in Force	12 - 15
Article 8	Bus Drivers	15 - 18
Article 9	Uniform Allowance	18
Article 10	Holidays	18 - 19
Article 11	Leaves	19 - 23
Article 12	Severance Pay	23 - 24
Article 13	Premium Pay (Work Week, Calamity Days, Meetings)	24 - 25
Article 14	Travel Allowance	25
Article 15	Vacation Schedule	25 - 26
Article 16	Residency	26
Article 17	Insurance	26 - 29
Article 18	Printing Contracts	29
Article 19	No Strike	29
Article 20	Entire Agreement	29

Article 21	Consistency with Law	30
Article 22	Salary / Training Reimbursement	30 - 55
Article 23	Employee Evaluation	56 - 57
Article 24	Disciplinary Action	57 - 58
Article 25	Effects of Contract	58
Article 26	Notification of Board Meetings	58
Article 27	Smoke Free Workplace	58
Article 28	Alcohol-Drug Testing	59 - 61
Article 29	Labor Management Committees	62
Article 30	Quality of Work Incentive	62
Article 31		62
Article 32		62 - 63

DEFINITIONS

Board - Sandy Valley Board of Education

Association - OAPSE/OAPSE, LOCAL 450

Days - Calendar days unless defined otherwise

Gender - By the use of either "his" or "her" or any derivative

thereof, it is understood that said use is not to be interpreted to be discriminatory by reason of sex and that when "his" or "her" or any derivative thereof are used in this Agreement, they are to be interpreted as meaning either his or her or both as

appropriate.

Headings - It is understood and agreed that the use of headings before the various articles or sections is for convenience only, and that no heading shall be

used in the interpretation of said article or section nor effect any interpretation of any article or section.

The term employee used throughout this Agreement shall refer to a member of the bargaining unit. The term Board used in this Agreement shall also mean Administration where

appropriate.

Employee

Party or parties - The term party or parties used throughout this

Agreement shall refer to the Board, and the

Association or both where appropriate.

Employer - This term refers to the Sandy Valley Local School District, the Board, individual Board members, the

Treasurer, the Superintendent, and all other

administrators.

ARTICLE 1 ----- RECOGNITION

- A. The Board of the Sandy Valley Local Schools recognizes the Ohio Association of Public School Employees, Local #450 as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all non-certified employees in the bargaining unit for the terms of this agreement. The bargaining unit shall consist of these non-certified personnel: cooks, other cafeteria workers, building-level secretaries, aides, custodians, lead custodians and bus drivers, but excluding Superintendent and treasurer's office secretaries, supervisors, bus maintenance personnel, EMIS Coordinator, District Technology Assistant and substitutes.
- B. In the event the Board established a new non-supervisory/non confidential classification which is to be included in the bargaining unit, the Board will notify the Union of this new position and of the proposed wage rate. If the union disagrees with the wage rate the Board shall meet with the Union in an attempt to resolve the dispute.

In the event the parties cannot agree on the wage rate, the Board may proceed to post and fill the position at the rate it has established.

ARTICLE 2 ----- BOARD RIGHTS

The Board has the responsibility and shall exercise at all times its exclusive authority to manage and direct on behalf of the public all the operations and activities by law, including all of the specific rights identified in Revised Code Section 4117.08 (c) (1) through (9), inclusive. The exercise of these powers, the adoption of such policies, regulations and rules as it may deem necessary, shall be limited only by the terms of this Agreement, as entered in the Board minutes, with the Association.

ARTICLE 3 ----- ASSOCIATION DUES/SERVICE FEE

A. All employees in the bargaining unit covered by the contract who are members of the union on the effective date of this agreement and all other employees in such bargaining unit who become members of the union, at any time in the future shall, for the term of this contract, continue to be members of the union. The Board shall not honor dues deduction (check off) revocations from such employees.

- B. All employees hired after the effective date of this Agreement, who fail voluntarily to acquire or maintain membership in the Association, shall be required as a condition of employment, to pay to the Association a fair share fee, which shall not exceed the dues paid by members of the Association who are in the bargaining unit covered by this Agreement.
- C. The Association shall notify the Board of fair share fee amount and of any changes in the amount of dues deduction, and shall concurrently provide to each non-member employee a notice of the amount of the fee, adequate explanation as to how the fee was determined, a statement that the employee may file an objection as to the amount and how to receive a rebate, and an explanation as to the procedure which the employee must follow to challenge the amount of the fee under the Association's internal rebate policy.
- D. Fair share fee shall be deducted through the payroll deduction in the same manner as dues deductions, except that written authorization for fair share fee deduction is not required. Both dues and fair share fees shall be forwarded to the State Association with notices of names, addresses and amounts.
- E. The treasurer of the Board shall deduct from the employees' pay all dues deductions. The Association shall forward to the Treasurer by September 1, each year, the amount to be deducted for that year, if changed from the previous year. Deductions shall be made in equal installments beginning with the second pay in October and continue for seventeen (17) consecutive pays.
- F. The Board Treasurer shall forward to the OAPSE State Treasurer the amount of State Dues/Fees, along with a complete description by name and amount for each employee. A copy of this description shall be forwarded to the Local Treasurer. The Board Treasurer shall forward directly to the Local Treasurer the amount deducted for local dues. This shall be done within ten (10) days following each deduction.
- G. The union agrees that it will indemnify and hold the employer harmless from any claims, actions, demands, suits, damages, awards, fines, and court cost by an employee(s) arising from deductions made by the employer pursuant to this article.

H. Should OAPSE, Local 450 attain a membership of 83% of all eligible employees in the bargaining unit, the following will become effective:

All members of the bargaining unit who are not members of the Association and its Local #450 shall pay to the Association a fair share fee as a condition of their continued employment with the Sandy Valley Local School District. Such fair share fee shall not exceed dues paid by members of the Association and its Local #450.

AFSCME PEOPLE

The employer agrees to deduct from the wages of any employee who is a member of Local 450 a PEOPLE deduction as provided for in written authorization. Such authorization must be executed by the employee by giving written notice to both the Employer and Local 450 during the designated time period established by the employer. The Employer agrees to remit any deductions made pursuant to this provision promptly to the state office of OAPSE together with an itemized statement showing the name of each employee from whose pay such deductions have been made and the amount deducted during the period covered by the remittance.

ARTICLE 4 ----- NEGOTIATIONS

A. Procedure

- 1. Inaugurating Steps to Negotiations
 - a. Either party may initiate negotiations for a successor Agreement on or before March 1 of the year immediately preceding the expiration of such agreement, or any part thereof, by filing a Notice to Negotiate with the State Employment Relations Board and a copy to the other Party. A mutually convenient meeting date shall be set no later than March 15, unless all parties agree to a later date. All proposals shall be exchanged in writing at the first meeting. No additional issues shall be submitted by either party following the first meeting unless agreed to by both parties.

 Scope of bargaining shall include wages, hours, or terms, and conditions of employment. The continuation, modification or deletion of an existing provision of this Collective Bargaining Agreement is subject to collective bargaining between the parties.

Meetings

- a. Meetings between the Committee of OAPSE, Local 450 and a committee representing the Board will be scheduled for a mutually satisfactory time (within 15 days after the date of request for a meeting, unless a mutually satisfactory later date is agree upon).
 - (1.) Relevant data and supporting information, proposals and counter-proposals will be presented.
 - (2.) At all negotiations sessions each team shall be composed of no more than six (6) persons each. The Board shall select its team members and the Association shall select its team members.
 - (3.) During the period of consideration interim reports of progress may be made to the Association by its Committee and the Board by its representatives.
 - (4.) While discussions are in progress, any release prepared for news media shall be approved by both groups.
 - (5.) Upon the request of either party, the negotiations meeting shall be recessed to permit requesting party a time to caucus which will not exceed 15 minutes unless both parties agree to a longer period of time.

4. Exchange of Information

The Board and Superintendent agree to furnish OAPSE, Local 450, upon reasonable request, all available information concerning financial resources of the district. In return, OAPSE, Local 450 agrees to provide all information concerning negotiations terms as available from its records or those of its affiliate organizations such as the Ohio Association of Public School Employees.

5. Agreement

- a. As tentative agreement is reached on each proposal, it shall be initialed by the chief spokesperson of each team and dated. It is understood that such tentative agreements are not finally resolved, nor shall they be binding on either party, until such time as the total agreement is reached on the entire agreement. Any item not proposed with definite written changes in the initial proposal of either party shall be initialed at the first negotiation session as tentatively agreed and is subject to the provision above.
- b. When total tentative agreement is reached through negotiations, on all items, the total tentative contract shall, within fourteen (14) calendar days be submitted to the Association for formal approval. Following the ratification by the Association, the Board shall act within fourteen (14) calendar days on the tentative contract. The resulting ratified Agreement shall prevail over any conflicting Board policy.

6. Disagreement

If, after sixty (60) calendar days, or a number of days mutually agreed upon, of the first meeting, tentative agreement on all terms is not reached, both parties may use the services of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMS) as follows:

FMS shall be contacted jointly by both parties so that mediation may start as soon as possible. Once started,

mediation shall continue until tentative agreement is reached on all unresolved items or the contract and any extensions have expired.

7. The parties agree that the foregoing shall be the mutually agreed to alternative dispute settlement procedure.

ARTICLE 5 ----- GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. Definitions

- 1. A "Grievance" is an alleged violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of this agreement, or any disciplinary action affecting any bargaining unit member.
- "Days" in this procedure shall be working (school) days.
 During the summer recess, "days" shall be weekdays.
- 3. A "Grievant" shall be defined as an employee, group of employees, or the Union.

B. Rights

- 1. A Grievant may be accompanied at all steps of the grievance procedure by a representative of the Association or committee.
- 2. All parties agree that the grievance shall be kept as confidential as is appropriate and shall be processed as expeditiously as possible.
- If a grievance is not processed within the timeline given, unless extended by mutual agreement, the grievance shall be deemed settled on the basis of the disposition of that step.
- 4. If the grievance is not initiated within fourteen (14) days after the aggrieved person knew of or should have known of the event or condition upon which it is based, the grievance shall be considered waived.
- 5. The written grievance and copies of all communications, decisions, or records dealing with a grievance shall be furnished to all parties to a grievance. In addition, no

records, documents, or communications concerning a grievance shall be placed in the personnel file of any of the participants.

C. Procedure

Level 1 - A bargaining unit member with a grievance may initiate this procedure in one of the following ways:

- He/She may approach the administrator immediately concerned and request a meeting be scheduled to discuss the matter on his/her own behalf.
- 2. He/She may request that a representative of the Association accompany him/her in a meeting with the administrator, and the Association representative may speak on behalf of the grievant if desired. The administrator shall not initiate any consultation with the grievant prior to the scheduled meeting at which the Association representative is to be present.
- The above grievance need not be in writing and will remain confidential.

Level 2 - If the grievance is not resolved as a result of this meeting, (Level 1, Informal), it may be pursued further by submitting a completed Grievance Report Form, Level 2, in duplicate, within five (5) days of the informal, Level 1, meeting. Copies of this form shall be submitted by the grievant(s) to the immediate supervisor. Within five (5) days of the receipt of the Grievance Report Form, the immediate supervisor shall meet with the grievant(s). The immediate supervisor shall write a disposition of the grievance within fifteen (15) days after such meeting by completing Level 2, of the Grievance Report Form and returning a copy to the grievant and the Superintendent.

Level 3 - If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance in Level 2, the grievant shall, within five (5) days of such disposition, complete Grievance Report Form, Level 3 and submit same to the Superintendent or his/her designee, who shall within fifteen (15) days meet with the grievant and write his/her disposition of the grievance by completing his/her position of Level 3, forwarding a copy to the grievant, the Association and the immediate supervisor.

Level 4 - If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level 3, the grievant shall, within five (5) days of such disposition, complete Grievance Report Form, Level 4 and submit same to the President of the Board or his/her designee. The Board at its option may meet with the grievant for the purpose of reviewing such grievance. The meeting shall be held in executive session unless otherwise required by law. Such meeting shall be held within fifteen (15) days of receipt by the President of Level 4 grievance. The disposition of the grievance shall be written by the Board of Education and given to the grievant within 15 days following the meeting. If no meeting is conducted, the disposition will be written and given to the grievant within 15 days of receipt of the Level 4 grievance by the Board President.

Level 5 - If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level 4, OAPSE 450 may request a hearing before an arbitrator by completing Grievance Report Form, Level 5. OAPSE's request for arbitration shall be made within twenty (20) days following the receipt of the disposition of grievance under Level 4. OAPSE's request for arbitration shall be by certified mail with return receipt requested to the Superintendent. Within five (5) days following receipt OAPSE's request for arbitration, the Superintendent or designee and OAPSE's designee shall mutually petition the American Arbitration Association (AAA) to provide both parties with a list of seven (7) names from which an arbitrator will be selected by the voluntary rules of the AAA. A second list of seven (7) names may be requested by either party. The toss of a coin shall determine who strikes first.

Once the arbitrator has been selected, the arbitration process shall be in accordance with the rules and regulations of the AAA.

The arbitrator shall hold the necessary hearing promptly and issue the decision within such time as may be agreed upon. The arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter, or modify any terms of this agreement. The arbitrator does not have the power to change any evaluation. The decision of the arbitrator shall be in writing and a copy sent to all parties present at the hearing. The decision of the arbitrator shall be binding on the board, the Association and the grievant.

The cost of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the Board of Education and the Association.

D. Miscellaneous

- Nothing contained in this procedure shall be construed as limiting the individual rights of an employee having a complaint or problem to discuss the matter informally with members of the administration through normal channels of communication.
- 2. A grievance may be withdrawn at any level without prejudice or record.
- 3. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by or against any party of interest or participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.
- No release of information to the news media shall be given unless mutually agreed upon by both parties.
- No employee may be represented by any local organization other than OAPSE, Local 450, in any grievance procedure initiated pursuant to this agreement.
- 6. Forms to be used for the formal levels are available in the Superintendent's office.
- 7. Release time with pay shall be granted to no more than one bargaining unit member whose presence is required and the local president to attend arbitration hearings when said meetings are required and are conducted during the employees' regularly scheduled hours of employment.

Such release time shall be granted no more than twice in any school year other than for the President.

ARTICLE 6 ----- SENIORITY AND JOB POSTING

Section 1: Types of Seniority

A. District Seniority is defined as the length of continuous employment as a regular employee with the school district from the last date of hire.

B. Job Classification Seniority is defined as the length of continuous employment in the job classification.

Section 2: Breaking Ties in Seniority

- A. Job Classification Seniority: When two (2) or more employees have the same job classification seniority the employee with the most District Seniority shall be the most senior.
- B. District Seniority: When two (2) or more employees have the same District Seniority the most senior bargaining unit employee shall be determined by the toss of a coin.
- C. Breaking Seniority: All seniority shall be broken and employment shall be terminated when a bargaining unit member:
 - 1. Quits or retires from the school district
 - Is discharged for just cause.
 - Is non-renewed.
 - 4. Is laid off for a period exceeding two (2) years.
 - 5. Fails to report to work under the time limits specified under recall from layoff. Article 7

Section 3: Job Classifications

Secretaries Cafeteria Supervisors Lead Custodian Aides Cooks Custodians Head Cooks Other Cafeteria Employees Bus Drivers

Section 4: Seniority List

Each November the Association will be given a copy of the Seniority List for all bargaining unit members. This list shall show District Seniority and Job Classification Seniority for each employee in the bargaining unit. This list may be posted by the Association or an employee may review said list and will have until December 1 of the same year to challenge the list. A corrected list will be sent to the Association President as soon as the correction(s) can be made.

Section 5: Job Vacancies Within the Bargaining Unit

A. When a vacancy exists, whether they be newly created positions, or vacancies created through resignation, retirement or termination of an employee, a Vacancy Notice will be posted as follows:

During the school year - the Vacancy Notice shall be posted within five days after the termination of the preceding employee's assignment. The notice shall be posted both online and in common workplace locations for a period of five (5) work days in all buildings and bus garage.

During student recess times - a notice will be sent or shall be delivered to the Association President, and all employees via district email and a district "all call.".

- B. Employees who wish to bid on a vacancy shall do so in writing within the time period of the posting. Late bids will not be accepted unless there are no qualified bidders who applied within the posted time limits. All timely bids will be reviewed and all timely bidders shall be interviewed for the position.
- C. Employees will be awarded jobs on the basis of qualification, experience in the job classification, ability, and previous record of employment. If two or more employees are considered by the administration to be equal, job classification seniority will be the determining factor. The final decision in the filling of vacancies rests solely with the Superintendent after he/she has reviewed the rationale with the Association President and received any input from him/her.
- D. The Board/and or its designee shall interview applicants from the bargaining unit prior to interviewing outside applicants. If there are no qualified bidders from the bargaining unit the Board may hire from outside the bargaining unit. The final decision will rest with the Superintendent.
- E. Transfers and the assignment of all personnel is the responsibility and at the discretion of the Superintendent.
- F. In the case of a job vacancy within the bargaining unit as described in paragraph A of this section, the Board shall fill the vacancy with a regular employee of the Board within forty-five (45)

- days following the termination of the preceding employee's assignment.
- G. Should the Board not wish to fill the vacancy as described in paragraph A of this section and wish to reduce staff as described in paragraph 2 of the Reduction in Force Article, the Board shall post its decision not to fill the position within five (5) days following the Board Meeting where such action was taken.

ARTICLE 7 ----- REDUCTION IN FORCE

- A. If the Board determines it to be necessary to reduce the number of employees in a job classification due to abolishment of position, lack of funds, or lack of work, the following procedure shall govern.
- B. The number of people affected by a reduction in force will be kept to a minimum by not employing replacements, in so far as practical, for employees who resign, retire, or otherwise vacate a position.
- C. Whenever it becomes necessary to lay off employees by reasons stated above, affected employees shall be laid off according to seniority within the job classification with the least senior employee laid off first.

Seniority is defined in Article 6, Sections 1, 2, and 3.

Ties shall be broken in the same manner as described in Article 6. Section 2.

D. The following classifications shall be used for the purpose of defining job classification seniority in the event of a Reduction in Force:

Secretaries
Aides
Head Cooks
Cafeteria Supervisors
Cooks
Other Cafeteria Employees
Lead Custodian
Custodians
Bus Drivers

- E. The Board shall determine in which classification the reduction in force should occur and the number of positions to be reduced. Within a classification employees with limited contracts shall be laid off first and employees with continuing contracts shall be laid off last.
 - 1. Employees laid off may bump into another classification, seniority permitting, using the following procedure:

If the employee laid off from his/her classification, has been previously employed by the Board for not less than one (1) school year in a different classification (without interruption of system seniority) and has greater system seniority than an employee in that other classification, the employee may bump the least senior employee in that other classification. In such case, the bumped employee shall be laid off from the classification.

If bumping within the classification or into another classification places an employee in a position with less hours than the original position, the employee may bump, seniority permitting, the least senior employee in a position in the classification.

- If an employee cannot bump anyone in his classification, he may exercise his district seniority to bump the least senior employee in an equal or lower paying classification providing:
 - (a.) The employee formerly held this position for at least one year (without interruption of district seniority) as a regular employee in the school district, and he/she is determined by the administration to be fully qualified.
 - (b.) The employee has more district unit seniority than the least senior employee in the lower rated classification.
- 3. An employee so bumped shall have the displacement rights spelled out in this Article.

Time spent on a layoff caused by reduction in force will not disrupt the continuous service for purposes of computing seniority. Time spent on layoff caused by reduction in force does not count as "years of experience" for salary schedule purposes.

- F. Each employee to be laid off shall be given fourteen (14) days written notice of the layoff. The notice shall include:
 - 1. Reason for the layoff
 - 2. The effective date of the layoff
- G. For the classification in which the layoff occurs, the Board shall prepare a reinstatement list and name all employees. All employees employed under a limited contract shall be placed on the reinstatement list in the reverse order of layoff. The names of all employees employed under a continuing contract shall be placed on a separate reinstatement list in reverse order of layoff. Reinstatement shall be made from this list before any new employees are hired in that classification or any employee is reinstated from the limited contract list.
- H. Vacancies which occur in the classification of layoff shall be offered to the employee standing highest on the layoff list before the next person on the list may be considered. Employees shall have three calendar days to reply to the offer. If they fail to respond or decline the offer, they shall be removed from the reinstatement list and thus sever employment with the Board.
- I. The employee's name shall remain on the appropriate list for a period of two (2) years from the effective date of layoff. If reinstated from layoff during this period, such employee shall retain all previous accumulated seniority and a notice of reinstatement shall be made by certified mail. It is the employee's responsibility to keep his/her current address on file with the Superintendent.
- J. Employees who have not been laid off, but who have had positions abolished, will be given the opportunity to bump on the remaining positions within their classification following a reduction of personnel. Any employee who is bumped from his/her position will also have bumping rights within the job classification according to seniority.
- K. The Board will not abolish a position(s) in order to be able to hire outside contractors.

L. Should the Board find it necessary to reduce the number of hours of employment in a position, and should this reduction of hours cause the employee(s) to become ineligible for insurance benefits, the eligibility requirement for insurance shall be waived.

ARTICLE 8 ----- BUS DRIVERS

Section 1 --- Seniority List Posting

Seniority lists of drivers will be kept up to date by the transportation administrator and shall be posted at the bus garage.

Section 2 --- Switching Routes

In the event a substitute is called to drive a route, that person will drive the absent driver's route, unless both parties agree to switch temporarily and this is confirmed by the transportation administrator.

Section 3 --- Preschool Runs

Two (2) hours shall be the minimum pay for all Preschool drivers per day.

Section 4 --- Regular Runs

The Board of Education agrees to establish a seniority list for drivers. All current regular drivers shall have the right to retain a bus run year after year, once it is assigned, unless there is a required change due to a population shift, district or school area realignment. All bus runs which become open shall be filled by using the regular posting rules for positions. The routes shall be awarded on the basis of seniority. Only one bid change per driver per year will be permitted. However, the exception is a first year driver who must keep his/her originally assigned route for that school year and is not permitted to change routes. Changes in assignments may be made by the administration. Final decision to the above will rest with the Board of Education.

By the end of the first full week in October, all regularly scheduled bus routes shall be posted in the bus garage. The posted bus route shall indicate the bus number, the roads to be traveled, the approximate number of students, length in miles and the time allocated for that route. List of student data including medical problems shall be given to each driver.

On days that Saint James has school and Sandy Valley does not have school it shall be considered a regular 4 ½ hour run for the bus driver.

Section 5 --- Break in Seniority

If a contract employee should resign and return to his job, he or she shall not be given that previous seniority.

Section 6 --- Canceled Trips

Any driver reporting for a scheduled trip shall be paid for a minimum of two (2) hours at his/her regular hourly rate of pay provided the trip has not been canceled ninety (90) minutes prior to the scheduled departure time. It is the responsibility of the driver to contact the school to confirm the trip ninety (90) minutes prior to the departure time. Any driver making an overnight trip shall be paid his hourly rate from the time of departure until such time his/her group reaches their overnight accommodations. The driver's hourly rate shall begin again when said group is transported to the scheduled destination.

Section 7 --- Extra Curricular/Field/Athletic Trips

All regular Bus Drivers shall be offered all extracurricular/field/athletic trips. Whenever an extra trip of four (4) hours or more conflicts with all regular routes, regular drivers shall be given the opportunity to drive the extra trip with the understanding that they will be deducted for the time they miss on their regular route.

There shall be one (1) roster of drivers beginning each school year. Trips shall be offered on a seniority rotation basis to all regular drivers on the roster before substitute drivers are called. Field trip application forms will be numbered consecutively by the Superintendent and will be assigned in numerical order using the rotating seniority roster.

All scheduled trips for the following week will be posted by the previous Thursday morning. Drivers who do not respond by the conclusion of the Friday work day shall be considered to have declined the trip and be rotated to the bottom of the roster.

Drivers who wish to be on the roster shall inform the transportation administrator before September 1 of the school year. New drivers shall notify the transportation administrator upon notification of employment to be put on the roster.

For extra trips, drivers shall be paid their regular hourly rate with a two hour minimum. The Settlement Agreement executed December 1, 1999 regarding "blended" rate for overtime calculations is terminated.

Drivers and the bus on extra trips must remain at the event or activity, unless given permission to leave and return by the Superintendent.

The drivers shall be contacted at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the scheduled date of an extra trip except in an emergency. If a driver is not contacted at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the scheduled date of the extra trip, he/she shall have the right to refuse without going to the bottom of the call roster.

If a trip is canceled and rescheduled, the driver scheduled to take the original trip shall have the rescheduled trip or the next available trip, the choice being the driver's.

Drivers who have accepted a trip and cancel less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the scheduled departure time shall be removed from the trip roster for the remainder of the school year after the third (3rd) such occurrence.

In the event of an emergency (cancellation, rain out, etc.) and an honest effort has been made to contact the next three available drivers on the roster, the transportation administrator may then assign any regular or substitute driver that is available, to the rescheduled trip, again without any driver going to the bottom of the call roster.

No driver will be considered officially assigned until such list is posted and initialed by the driver. Any question of fairness of assignments should be brought to the attention of the transportation administrator at the time of posting. If agreement cannot be reached as to the assigned schedule, the matter shall be turned over to the Superintendent for final resolution.

Each year all regular drivers shall be updated on the procedures. New drivers shall be informed of all procedures and given a copy of the driver's handbook of which the driver will sign in acknowledgement of receipt.

Re-certification – Each driver will be paid up to four (4) hours per year for re-certification training as directed by the Superintendent.

Section 8 --- Video Cameras on Buses

The transportation administrator shall be responsible for cameras and the maintenance of the video.

The video cameras are not intended to be used to monitor and/or evaluate the job performance of drivers or aides.

Section 9 --- ROAD-E-O

The board shall pay for registration fees and expenses when drivers compete in the ROAD-E-O events. The Board will pay each driver 4.5 hours pay for obtaining a passing recertification grade at the ROAD-E-O.

ARTICLE 9 ----- UNIFORM ALLOWANCE

All regular cafeteria and custodial employees shall receive a uniform allowance of \$235. Allowances shall be paid not later than the second pay in October of each year. The Board will provide one (1) set of winter insulated coveralls to personnel as needed.

ARTICLE 10 ----- HOLIDAYS

December 25

The following are considered paid holidays or days paid for when not on the job:

January 1 New Year's Day Martin Luther King Day January February President's Day Easter Holiday Good Friday Memorial Day May * July 4 Independence Day September Labor Dav Thanksgiving Day November Day after Thanksgiving ** * November * December 24 Christmas Eve Day

18

Christmas Day

If any paid holiday falls on Saturday or Sunday, there shall be a paid day off on Friday preceding or Monday following the official date. Any employee who agrees to work on a holiday shall be paid at the regular rate of the employee's base rate for all hours worked in addition to payment for the holiday.

ARTICLE 11 ----- LEAVES

A. Personal Leave

 All employees in the Sandy Valley Local School District will be granted a maximum of three (3) days personal leave.

Beginning in the 2014-2015 school year and for each year thereafter, all employees in the Sandy Valley Local School District will be granted a maximum of three (3) days personal leave. These three days of personal leave shall consist of three (3) unrestricted days.

Personal leave may be granted for confidential personal matters.

- 2. Falsification or misrepresentation of the request may be grounds for termination of employment.
- 3. Personal leave cannot be included as part of vacation, and will not be granted for the work day, according to the adopted calendar, prior to or following a holiday. Such leave shall require at least one school day of written advance notice, on a form provided by the Superintendent's office, unless it is of an emergency nature.
- 4. Additional days to those provided above may be approved by the Superintendent on a case-by-case basis at his/her sole discretion.

B. Leave of Absence for Jury Duty or Military Training

- 1. Ohio Revised Code Section 3313.211 and 3319.085 shall apply.
- 2. The Board of Education shall pay the difference of the employee's regular pay and that received for service as a juror for all time lost from work.

C. Pregnancy and Maternity Leave

Pregnancy and maternity leaves shall be made consistent with applicable federal and state statutes.

D. Professional Leave

- 1. Employees may apply for professional leave, which may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent.
- Attendance at the State OAPSE convention shall be considered appropriate professional leave, and the president and each certified delegate to the conference from the Local Chapter shall be permitted time off with pay to attend the conference. A total of 6 days may be used for this purpose.
- If a member of OAPSE Local 450 is elected to an OAPSE District office, that person shall be granted up to five (5) days unpaid leave per year, to conduct official Union business, in addition to leave granted elsewhere in this Agreement.

E. Special Permission for Absence

- Unusual circumstances may require a classified employee to be absent for reasons not foreseen in any of the above reasons; therefore, the Superintendent shall have the discretionary authority to grant permission for other justifiable reasons.
- 2. If a formal leave of absence request is deemed necessary, such request will be submitted in writing to the Superintendent who will justify presentation to the Board of Education for formal approval.

F. Rights While on Leave

Any member of the bargaining unit on any leave of absence shall be entitled to request and receive the right to continue to be covered by insurance, providing the employee pays to the Treasurer of the Board, in advance, each month the full amount of the monthly group plan premium of such coverage.

G. Sick Leave

- Days of absence authorized under this provision shall be deducted from sick leave accumulation. One and onefourth days of sick leave shall be granted full-time employees each completed month of employment up to 15 days per year. Unused sick leave is cumulative to three hundred ten (310) days.
- Should an employee have absences due to illness of more than the total accumulated sick leave such employee shall be granted an advancement of sick leave to a maximum of five (5) days, if requested. If the employee should resign, be placed on leave of absence, or become deceased before this advancement of sick leave has been earned back, such unearned sick leave shall be deducted from final adjusted pay.
- 3. Previously accumulated sick leave of an employee who has been separated from another Ohio public agency as provided in O.R.C., Section 3319.141 shall be accepted at full value up to one hundred and ninety (190) work days provided none of such accumulated sick leave has been converted to pay upon retirement as provided by Section 124.39 of O.R.C.
- 4. Standard reasons acceptable for sick leave are:
 - a. Personal illness
 - b. Injury
 - c. Absence due to illness, injury, or death in the employee's immediate family.
 - d. Exposure to contagious disease which could be communicated to others.

- e. Pregnancy
- f. Death of grandparents, grandparents-in-law, aunts, uncles, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, brother-in-law and sister-in-law.
- 5. For purposes of absence due to illness, injury or death in the employee's immediate family, immediate family shall be defined to include bona fide members of the employee's household and/or spouse, parent, child, brother, sister, mother or father-in-law, stepchildren, stepparents, foster children, and foster parents. Death of a relative not included in the above-mentioned may be considered by the Superintendent and leave chargeable to sick leave will be authorized for not more than two (2) days.
- Sick leave notification form must be completed for any day or part of day used. The form must include a signed statement justifying usage of sick leave for one of the reasons stated above.

H. Assault Leave - Paid

If any member of the bargaining unit is physically assaulted while performing his/her assignments or duties which are authorized or ordered by the Superintendent or his/her designee, the Board shall grant leave of absence for the period of recovery so designated by the employee's physician. The leave shall be granted with full pay and benefits accruing and usable and shall not be charged to sick leave or any other leave. Such leave shall be for a maximum of thirty (30) days unless an extension is mutually agreed to by the employee and the Board.

I. Family Medical Leave

- If an employee takes a leave granted under this article for a reason covered by the Family and Medical Leave Act, the leave shall be administered under the provisions of the FMLA.
- 2. Upon approval of the Superintendent and Association President, this section may be modified as necessary to comply with federal law and rules and regulations.

- 3. The Board shall provide a copy of the policy on FMLA in the library of each building.
- 4. The employee must substitute other paid leave, for part or, if available, all of the FMLA leave.

J. Public Service Leave

If any employee is a member of a public service organization (fire department or emergency squad) and is needed during an emergency which requires the employee to miss work, he/she may be granted a public service leave not to exceed 1 day per school year.

ARTICLE 12 ----- SEVERANCE PAY

- A. An employee with ten (10) or more years of service with the state of Ohio, any political subdivision thereof, or any combination thereof, may elect, after he/she has applied for and been accepted by the SERS of Ohio, to be paid in cash for twenty-eight percent (28%) the value of his/her accrued but unused sick leave credit, but the aggregate value of the accrued but unused sick leave credit that is paid shall not exceed the value of eighty-six 86 days.
- B. The payment under division (A) above shall be based on the employee's rate of pay at the time of retirement and shall eliminate all sick leave credit accrued but unused by the employee at the time payment is made.
- C. To be eligible for payment under division (A) above, the employee must have been accepted for retirement by the Public School Employees Retirement System of Ohio within 120 days of the last day of employment with the Board.
- D. Each classified employee who has been employed by the Sandy Valley Board of Education for a minimum of 10 years, and who is first time eligible based on SERS and actually retires during the year or at the end of the year when first eligible, shall receive the following benefits:

A five thousand (\$5,000) cash payment the first pay date in January following retirement. First time eligibility verification must be provided by the employee from SERS.

First time eligible shall be defined as eligible at the age of sixty (60) with ten (10) years; or at age fifty-five (55) with twenty-five (25) years; or any age with thirty (30) years.

If an employee dies prior to full payment of the incentive being made, his/her beneficiary/estate shall receive the payment.

ARTICLE 13 ----- PREMIUM PAY

Any employee who is in pay status for either eight (8) hours in any one day, or forty (40) hours in any one week shall receive his/her pay at time and one-half (1 1/2) for all hours worked over eight (8) or forty (40), from Monday through Sunday.

All hours worked on Sunday shall be paid at double time the employee's base rate, when such work is necessitated by the use of Board owned buildings by outside groups.

Cafeteria employees who perform cafeteria duties outside their regular working day shall be paid at a rate of one and one-half (1 1/2) times their regular hourly rate for all hours worked.

WORK WEEK

The normal workweek shall consist of five (5) consecutive days, Monday through Friday. This article shall not restrict the extension of the regular work day or week on an overtime basis as determined by the Board, when such is necessary to carry on the business of the school district. This article does not include extra-curricular or field trips by bus drivers on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday.

CALAMITY DAYS

When the Superintendent declares a calamity day, employees may be required to report to work to maintain the operation of the schools. Employees who are required to work on a calamity day shall be paid at the rate of one and one half (1 1/2) times the time worked, plus pay for the declared calamity day. Employees who are required to work shall make a reasonable effort to report and shall immediately notify their supervisor if they are unable to do so.

This article does not include after school events which were previously scheduled and not canceled or postponed.

Any days beyond five (5) calamity days must be worked to fulfill your contracted year.

Employees shall be paid their regular hourly rate for all online training if it cannot be completed during their regular work time.

MEETINGS

Employees required to attend a meeting other than during their regular work hours will be compensated for their actual number of hours or one (1) hour, whichever is greater, at their regular rate of pay.

If bus drivers are only scheduled to attend one (1) of the two- (2) inservice days, they may be asked to attend up to three meetings, the total time of which may not exceed four and one-half (4 1/2) hours called by the Transportation Administrator. If meetings are called by the Transportation Administrator, employees must be given five (5) work days notice of the meeting.

This article does not include meetings outside the district, or those meetings required for certification or licensing.

ARTICLE 14 ----- TRAVEL ALLOWANCE

Any employee who travels on any prior approved trip outside the district on official school business will be reimbursed mileage at the IRS rate in effect on July 1 of each year. Such payment shall also apply for those employees who must travel from building to building as part of their assignment either regularly or as a special assignment.

ARTICLE 15 ----- VACATION SCHEDULE

All employees employed on a full-time basis (12 months) shall be entitled to vacation at the following rate:

0 through 1 year of service pro-rated based on 2 weeks,

beginning with the new fiscal

year

1 through 7 years service 2 weeks

8 through 15 years 3 weeks

over 15 years service

4 weeks

Vacation days cannot be used until earned.

Vacation must be requested in writing and approved by the employee's supervisor at least two weeks in advance of the vacation. The Superintendent may waive this requirement.

ARTICLE 16 ----- RESIDENCY

Children of employees who live outside the school district shall be permitted to attend Sandy Valley Schools without any tuition fees being charged.

ARTICLE 17 ----- INSURANCE

In order to be eligible for insurance, an employee must be contracted for at least 20 hours per week.

Employees may not be paid cash in lieu of insurance benefits.

Coverage: See Plan Booklet for COG adopted coverage information

<u>Medical</u>

A. The Board will pay 85% of the premium and the employee will pay 15% for full-time employees. Part-time employees will pay 50% of the premium.

B. <u>Stark County Schools Council</u>

The Board of Education may fully meet its obligations to provide health care benefits and services under this collective bargaining agreement by participating in the health benefits program of the Stark County Schools Council (COG). The Board shall provide health, dental and life insurance through the COG. The coverage shall be the standardized COG specifications.

C. <u>Preferred Provider - Doctors/Hospitals</u>

- 1. The parties agree that one or more Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) programs for hospital and physicians' services shall be provided through the Stark County Council of Governments (COG) Health Insurance Program. Anyone, as of August 1, 2009, who has the traditional Mutual Health Program instead of the PPO, may continue such participation.
- The selection of the PPO(s), the types of benefits/programs, or any changes therein, shall be mutually determined by the representative of the COG and the Stark County OEA office representative.

D. <u>Preferred Provider - Prescription Drugs</u>

The Board shall provide, through the Stark County Council of Governments, a preferred provider drug program that, if the employee chooses to utilize, will include the following:

- The program will be available to employees and their dependents who have "primary" coverage under the District's insurance.
- 2. The employee will pay the 20% co-payment to the provider and the remaining 80% will be direct billed to the insurance company. If the yearly maximum has been reached, provisions will be made to refund the employee's 20% co-payment.
- The deductible will be waived.
- 4. The list of covered expenses shall be agreed upon by the COG and the Stark County OEA office representative.
- 5. Mail order prescription: Mail order must be used for maintenance drugs in order for the insurance provisions to apply.
- 6. Generic: Generic drugs must be substituted where applicable in order for the insurance provisions to apply.

Life Insurance

The Board shall provide term life and accidental death and dismemberment coverage in the amount of \$70,000 for each employee.

Bargaining unit members may purchase additional term life insurance at the group rate, in \$5,000 increments, up to a maximum of \$60,000 coverage in addition to Board paid coverage. Modifications to this provision may be necessary to comply with requirements of the insurance carrier. The value of the life insurance reduces by 50% at age 65. The specific terms of the policy are contained in the life insurance contract.

Dental Insurance

Beginning with the 2014-2015 school year, the Board shall provide dental coverage and pay 95% of the premium and the employee will pay 5%.

Beginning with the 2015-2016 school year, the Board shall provide dental coverage and pay 90% of the premium and the employee will pay 10%.

Beginning with the 2016-2017 school year, the Board shall provide dental coverage and pay 85% of the premium and the employee will pay 15%.

Section 125-Tax Shelter

Tax sheltering of the individual's contribution for health costs, unreimbursed medical expenses and dependent coverage will be provided, under IRS Section 125.

All COG employers must offer the IRS Section 125 tax shelter provided through the COG. If an employee elects to utilize any of the IRS 125 benefits, the administrative cost shall be shared equally between the employee and the employer.

Premium Holidays

If the employer receives a premium holiday(s), the employees shall not be required to pay their portion of the premium(s) for the holiday month(s).

Spousal Coverage

Any new Participants to the COG, after June 30, 2015, with working spouses who have the ability to be covered under an insurance plan through his/her place of employment, will be required to take his/her plan as their primary plan. This provision does not apply to a participant who had insurance with one COG employer and immediately thereafter, moved to another COG employer. If the spouse is required to pay forty (40%) percent or more of the premium with his/her employer, the requirements of this section shall not apply.

Same Sex Marriage

If state law recognizes same-sex marriage, the COG plan specifications will be modified to include those individuals.

ARTICLE 18 ----- PRINTING CONTRACTS

The Board of Education will print and provide copies of the current collective bargaining agreement for all classified employees.

ARTICLE 19 ----- NO STRIKE

For the duration of this contract, neither the Association, its agents, nor the employees represented by the Association shall engage in, assist in, sanction or approve any strike, slowdown, or withholding of services designed to interfere with the normal operations of the school district. The Board of Education will not lock out the Association during the term of this contract.

ARTICLE 20 ----- ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This agreement supersedes and cancels all previous agreement, verbal or written or based on alleged past practices and on issues in this agreement between the Board and OAPSE and constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. Any amendment or agreement supplemental hereto shall not be binding upon either party unless executed in writing by the parties hereto.

ARTICLE 21 ----- CONSISTENCY WITH LAW

If any provision of an agreement between the Board and OAPSE shall be found contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed to be valid and subsisting to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect. Both parties acknowledge they will abide by items, terms, and procedures in conducting negotiations when applicable.

ARTICLE 22 ----- SALARY / TRAINING REIMBURSEMENT

SALARY SCHEDULE

- A. Effective July 1, 2016 the salary schedules shall increase by 1.75% plus \$.25 per hour on the base.
- B. Effective July 1, 2017 the salary schedules shall increase by adding \$.50 per hour on the base.
- C. Effective July 1, 2018 the salary schedules shall increase by adding \$.50 per hour on the base.
- D. Effective July 1, 2019 the salary schedules shall increase by adding \$.50 per hour on the base.
- E. After fifteen (15) days, a bargaining unit member who "subs" in another classification shall receive pay at the higher classification rate appropriate to the employee's experience step for all hours worked in that position. A bargaining unit member who "subs" in a lower classification shall maintain his/her regular rate of pay for all hours worked in that position.
- F. Any bargaining unit member who is selected for another job classification shall be placed on the new job classification salary schedule at the same step as that which they held in their previous classification. This provision shall not apply to employees who are employed in two job classifications at the same time.

G. Wage Reopener

In the event the District begins receiving any royalties during the term of this contract (July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2020), the parties agree to reopen Article 22 Salary/Training Reimbursement to discuss compensation.

- H. After fifteen (15) days, a bargaining unit member who "subs" in another classification shall receive pay at the higher classification rate appropriate to the employee's experience step for all hours worked in that position. A bargaining unit member who "subs" in a lower classification shall maintain his/her regular rate of pay for all hours worked in that position.
- I. Any bargaining unit member who is selected for another job classification shall be placed on the new job classification salary schedule at the same step as that which they held in their previous classification. This provision shall not apply to employees who are employed in two job classifications at the same time.

TRAINING REIMBURSEMENT

If approved by the superintendent, the board may pay for all or a portion of workshops, training programs or college credit courses for members of the bargaining unit.

CAFETERIA (2016-2017) - 1.75% + \$0.25/hour

		CAFETERIA		HEAD		H.S.	
		SUPERVISOR		COOK 190		COOK 190	
		190 DAYS	HOURLY	DAYS 6.5	HOURLY	DAYS 6	HOURLY
EXP.	INDEX	8 HR/DAY	RATE	HR/DAY	RATE	HR/DAY	RATE
0	1.000	\$18,927	\$12.45	\$14,190	\$11.49	\$12,195	\$10.70
1	1.050	\$19,874	13.07	\$14,900	12.06	\$12,805	\$11.23
2	1.070	\$20,252	13.32	\$15,184	12.29	\$13,049	\$11.45
3	1.090	\$20,631	13.57	\$15,467	12.52	\$13,293	\$11.66
4	1.110	\$21,009	13.82	\$15,751	12.75	\$13,537	\$11.87
5	1.130	\$21,388	14.07	\$16,035	12.98	\$13,781	\$12.09
6	1.140	\$21,577	14.20	\$16,177	13.10	\$13,902	\$12.20
7	1.150	\$21,766	14.32	\$16,319	13.21	\$14,024	\$12.30
8	1.170	\$22,145	14.57	\$16,603	13.44	\$14,268	\$12.52
9	1.180	\$22,334	14.69	\$16,745	13.56	\$14,390	\$12.62
10	1.190	\$22,523	14.82	\$16,886	13.67	\$14,512	\$12.73
12	1.200	\$22,713	14.94	\$17,028	13.79	\$14,634	\$12.84
14	1.220	\$23,091	15.19	\$17,312	14.02	\$14,878	\$13.05
19	1.250	\$23,659	15.57	\$17,738	14.36	\$15,244	\$13.37
24	1.280	\$24,227	15.94	\$18,164	14.71	\$15,610	\$13.69

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

CAFETERIA (2016-2017) - 1.75% + \$0.25/hour

		ELEMENTARY		OTHER	
		COOK		CAFETERIA	
		190 DAYS	HOURLY	190 DAYS	HOURLY
EXP.	INDEX	6 HR/DAY	RATE	6 HR/DAY	RATE
0	1.000	\$11,736	\$10.29	\$12,195	\$10.70
1	1.050	\$12,323	10.81	\$12,805	\$11.23
2	1.070	\$12,557	11.02	\$13,049	\$11.45
3	1.090	\$12,792	11.22	\$13,293	\$11.66
4	1.110	\$13,027	11.43	\$13,537	\$11.87
5	1.130	\$13,262	11.63	\$13,781	\$12.09
6	1.140	\$13,379	11.74	\$13,902	\$12.20
7	1.150	\$13,496	11.84	\$14,024	\$12.30
8	1.170	\$13,731	12.04	\$14,268	\$12.52
9	1.180	\$13,848	12.15	\$14,390	\$12.62
10	1.190	\$13,966	12.25	\$14,512	\$12.73
12	1.200	\$14,083	12.35	\$14,634	\$12.84
14	1.220	\$14,318	12.56	\$14,878	\$13.05
19	1.250	\$14,670	12.87	\$15,244	\$13.37
24	1.280	\$15,022	13.18	\$15,610	\$13.69

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

SECRETARIES (2016-2017) - 1.75% + \$0.25/hour

		12 MONTH		9.5 MONTH		11 MONTH	
		MONTH		203		233	
		260 DAYS	HOURLY	DAYS	HOURLY	DAYS	HOURLY
EXP.	INDEX	8 HR/DAY	RATE	8 HR/DAY	RATE	8 HR/DAY	RATE
0	1.000	\$21,649	\$10.41	\$16,950	\$10.44	\$19,420	\$10.42
1	1.050	\$22,732	\$ 10.93	\$17,798	\$ 10.96	\$20,391	\$ 10.94
2	1.075	\$23,273	\$ 11.19	\$18,222	\$ 11.22	\$20,876	\$ 11.20
3	1.100	\$23,814	\$ 11.45	\$18,645	\$ 11.48	\$21,362	\$ 11.46
4	1.125	\$24,355	\$ 11.71	\$19,069	\$ 11.74	\$21,847	\$ 11.72
5	1.150	\$24,897	\$ 11.97	\$19,493	\$ 12.00	\$22,333	\$ 11.98
6	1.175	\$25,438	\$ 12.23	\$19,917	\$ 12.26	\$22,818	\$ 12.24
7	1.200	\$25,979	\$ 12.49	\$20,340	\$ 12.52	\$23,304	\$ 12.50
8	1.225	\$26,520	\$ 12.75	\$20,764	\$ 12.79	\$23,789	\$ 12.76
9	1.235	\$26,737	\$ 12.85	\$20,934	\$ 12.89	\$23,984	\$ 12.87
10	1.250	\$27,061	\$ 13.01	\$21,188	\$ 13.05	\$24,275	\$ 13.02
12	1.260	\$27,278	\$ 13.11	\$21,357	\$ 13.15	\$24,469	\$ 13.13
14	1.275	\$27,603	\$ 13.27	\$21,612	\$ 13.31	\$24,760	\$ 13.28
19	1.310	\$28,360	\$ 13.63	\$22,205	\$ 13.67	\$25,440	\$ 13.65
24	1.345	\$29,118	\$ 14.00	\$22,798	\$ 14.04	\$26,120	\$ 14.01

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

 ${\sf NOTE-Basis}$ for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

AIDES (2016-2017) - 1.75% + \$0.25/hour

		188 DAYS	400
		HOURLY	188 DAYS
EXP.	INDEX	RATE	8 HR/DAY
0	1.000	\$10.67	\$16,054
1	1.050	\$11.21	\$16,857
2	1.065	\$11.37	\$17,098
3	1.070	\$11.42	\$17,178
4	1.073	\$11.45	\$17,226
5	1.075	\$11.47	\$17,258
6	1.078	\$11.51	\$17,306
7	1.080	\$11.53	\$17,338
8	1.095	\$11.69	\$17,579
9	1.105	\$11.80	\$17,740
10	1.110	\$11.85	\$17,820
12	1.120	\$11.96	\$17,981
14	1.140	\$12.17	\$18,302
19	1.170	\$12.49	\$18,783
24	1.200	\$12.81	\$19,265

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

BUS DRIVERS (2016-2017) - 1.75% + \$0.25/hour

		188 DAYS 4.5	HOURLY	DAILY
EXP.	INDEX	HR/DAY	RATE	RATE
0	1.000	\$10,927	\$12.92	\$58.12
1	1.060	\$11,583	\$13.69	\$61.61
2	1.120	\$12,238	\$14.47	\$65.10
3	1.140	\$12,457	\$14.72	\$66.26
4	1.150	\$12,566	\$14.85	\$66.84
5	1.160	\$12,675	\$14.98	\$67.42
6	1.167	\$12,752	\$15.07	\$67.83
7	1.174	\$12,828	\$15.16	\$68.24
8	1.180	\$12,894	\$15.24	\$68.58
9	1.190	\$13,003	\$15.37	\$69.17
10	1.240	\$13,549	\$16.02	\$72.07
12	1.250	\$13,659	\$16.15	\$72.65
14	1.300	\$14,205	\$16.79	\$75.56
19	1.360	\$14,861	\$17.57	\$79.05
24	1.420	\$15,516	\$18.34	\$82.53

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

CUSTODIANS (2016-2017) - 1.75% + \$0.25/hour

LEAD REGULAR **CUSTODIAN** 260 DAYS **HOURLY** 260 DAYS HOURLY 8 HR/DAY 8 HR/DAY EXP. INDEX RATE RATE 0 1.000 \$14.14 \$26,890 \$12.93 \$29,414 1 1.050 \$28,234 13.57 \$30,884 14.85 2 1.075 \$28,906 13.90 \$31,620 15.20 3 1.100 \$29,579 14.22 \$32,355 15.56 4 1.125 \$30,251 14.54 \$33,091 15.91 5 1.150 \$30,923 14.87 \$33,826 16.26 6 1.175 \$31,595 15.19 \$34,561 16.62 7 1.200 \$32,268 15.51 \$35,297 16.97 8 1.225 \$32,940 15.84 \$36,032 17.32 9 \$33,209 \$36,326 1.235 15.97 17.46 10 1.250 \$33,612 16.16 \$36,767 17.68 12 1.260 \$33,881 16.29 \$37,061 17.82 14 1.275 \$37,503 \$34,284 16.48 18.03 19 1.310 \$35,225 16.94 \$38,532 18.53 24 1.345 \$36,167 17.39 \$39,562 19.02

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

CAFETERIA (2017-2018) - \$0.50/hour

		CAFETERIA		HEAD		H.S.	
		SUPERVISOR		COOK 190		COOK 190	
		190 DAYS	HOURLY	DAYS 6.5	HOURLY	DAYS 6	HOURLY
EXP.	INDEX	8 HR/DAY	RATE	HR/DAY	RATE	HR/DAY	RATE
0	1.000	\$19,687	\$12.95	\$14,808	\$11.99	\$12,765	\$11.20
1	1.050	\$20,672	13.60	\$15,548	12.59	\$13,403	\$11.76
2	1.070	\$21,065	13.86	\$15,844	12.83	\$13,659	\$11.98
3	1.090	\$21,459	14.12	\$16,140	13.07	\$13,914	\$12.21
4	1.110	\$21,853	14.38	\$16,437	13.31	\$14,169	\$12.43
5	1.130	\$22,247	14.64	\$16,733	13.55	\$14,425	\$12.65
6	1.140	\$22,443	14.77	\$16,881	13.67	\$14,552	\$12.77
7	1.150	\$22,640	14.89	\$17,029	13.79	\$14,680	\$12.88
8	1.170	\$23,034	15.15	\$17,325	14.03	\$14,935	\$13.10
9	1.180	\$23,231	15.28	\$17,473	14.15	\$15,063	\$13.21
10	1.190	\$23,428	15.41	\$17,621	14.27	\$15,191	\$13.33
12	1.200	\$23,625	15.54	\$17,769	14.39	\$15,318	\$13.44
14	1.220	\$24,018	15.80	\$18,066	14.63	\$15,574	\$13.66
19	1.250	\$24,609	16.19	\$18,510	14.99	\$15,956	\$14.00
24	1.280	\$25,200	16.58	\$18,954	15.35	\$16,339	\$14.33

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

CAFETERIA (2017-2018) - \$0.50/hour

		ELEMENTARY	ELEMENTARY OTHER		
		COOK		CAFETERIA	
		190 DAYS	HOURLY	190 DAYS	HOURLY
EXP.	INDEX	6 HR/DAY	RATE	6 HR/DAY	RATE
0	1.000	\$12,306	\$10.79	\$12,765	\$11.20
1	1.050	\$12,921	11.33	\$13,403	\$11.76
2	1.070	\$13,167	11.55	\$13,659	\$11.98
3	1.090	\$13,413	11.77	\$13,914	\$12.21
4	1.110	\$13,660	11.98	\$14,169	\$12.43
5	1.130	\$13,906	12.20	\$14,425	\$12.65
6	1.140	\$14,029	12.31	\$14,552	\$12.77
7	1.150	\$14,152	12.41	\$14,680	\$12.88
8	1.170	\$14,398	12.63	\$14,935	\$13.10
9	1.180	\$14,521	12.74	\$15,063	\$13.21
10	1.190	\$14,644	12.85	\$15,191	\$13.33
12	1.200	\$14,767	12.95	\$15,318	\$13.44
14	1.220	\$15,013	13.17	\$15,574	\$13.66
19	1.250	\$15,382	13.49	\$15,956	\$14.00
24	1.280	\$15,752	13.82	\$16,339	\$14.33

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

 ${\sf NOTE-Basis}$ for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

SECRETARIES (2017-2018) - \$0.50/hour

		12		9.5		11	
		MONTH 260		MONTH 203		MONTH 233	
		DAYS	HOURLY	DAYS	HOURLY	DAYS	HOURLY
EVD.	INIDEN	8	D.4.T.E.	8	DATE	8	D. T.
EXP.	INDEX	HR/DAY	RATE	HR/DAY	RATE	HR/DAY	RATE
0	1.000	\$22,689	\$10.91	\$17,762	\$10.94	\$20,352	\$10.92
1	1.050	\$23,824	\$ 11.45	\$18,650	\$ 11.48	\$21,370	\$ 11.46
2	1.075	\$24,391	\$ 11.73	\$19,095	\$ 11.76	\$21,878	\$ 11.74
3	1.100	\$24,958	\$ 12.00	\$19,539	\$ 12.03	\$22,387	\$ 12.01
4	1.125	\$25,525	\$ 12.27	\$19,983	\$ 12.30	\$22,896	\$ 12.28
5	1.150	\$26,093	\$ 12.54	\$20,427	\$ 12.58	\$23,405	\$ 12.56
6	1.175	\$26,660	\$ 12.82	\$20,871	\$ 12.85	\$23,914	\$ 12.83
7	1.200	\$27,227	\$ 13.09	\$21,315	\$ 13.12	\$24,422	\$ 13.10
8	1.225	\$27,794	\$ 13.36	\$21,759	\$ 13.40	\$24,931	\$ 13.38
9	1.235	\$28,021	\$ 13.47	\$21,937	\$ 13.51	\$25,135	\$ 13.48
10	1.250	\$28,361	\$ 13.64	\$22,203	\$ 13.67	\$25,440	\$ 13.65
12	1.260	\$28,588	\$ 13.74	\$22,381	\$ 13.78	\$25,643	\$ 13.76
14	1.275	\$28,929	\$ 13.91	\$22,647	\$ 13.95	\$25,949	\$ 13.92
19	1.310	\$29,723	\$ 14.29	\$23,269	\$ 14.33	\$26,661	\$ 14.30
24	1.345	\$30,517	\$ 14.67	\$23,890	\$ 14.71	\$27,373	\$ 14.69

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

AIDES (2017-2018) - \$0.50/hour

		188 DAYS	400
		HOURLY	188 DAYS
EXP.	INDEX	RATE	8 HR/DAY
0	1.000	\$11.17	\$16,806
1	1.050	\$11.73	\$17,646
2	1.065	\$11.90	\$17,899
3	1.070	\$11.96	\$17,983
4	1.073	\$11.99	\$18,033
5	1.075	\$12.01	\$18,067
6	1.078	\$12.05	\$18,117
7	1.080	\$12.07	\$18,151
8	1.095	\$12.24	\$18,403
9	1.105	\$12.35	\$18,571
10	1.110	\$12.40	\$18,655
12	1.120	\$12.52	\$18,823
14	1.140	\$12.74	\$19,159
19	1.170	\$13.07	\$19,663
24	1.200	\$13.41	\$20,167

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

BUS DRIVERS (2017-2018) - \$0.50/hour

		188 DAYS 4.5	HOURLY	DAILY
EXP.	INDEX	HR/DAY	RATE	RATE
0	1.000	\$11,350	\$13.42	\$60.37
1	1.060	\$12,031	\$14.22	\$63.99
2	1.120	\$12,712	\$15.03	\$67.62
3	1.140	\$12,939	\$15.29	\$68.82
4	1.150	\$13,052	\$15.43	\$69.43
5	1.160	\$13,166	\$15.56	\$70.03
6	1.167	\$13,245	\$15.66	\$70.45
7	1.174	\$13,325	\$15.75	\$70.88
8	1.180	\$13,393	\$15.83	\$71.24
9	1.190	\$13,506	\$15.97	\$71.84
10	1.240	\$14,074	\$16.64	\$74.86
12	1.250	\$14,187	\$16.77	\$75.47
14	1.300	\$14,755	\$17.44	\$78.48
19	1.360	\$15,436	\$18.25	\$82.11
24	1.420	\$16,117	\$19.05	\$85.73

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

CUSTODIANS (2017-2018) - \$0.50/hour

				LEAD	
		REGULAR		CUSTODIAN	
		260 DAYS	HOURLY	260 DAYS	HOURLY
EXP.	INDEX	8 HR/DAY	RATE	8 HR/DAY	RATE
0	1.000	\$27,930	\$13.43	\$30,454	\$14.64
1	1.050	\$29,326	14.10	\$31,976	15.37
2	1.075	\$30,024	14.43	\$32,738	15.74
3	1.100	\$30,723	14.77	\$33,499	16.11
4	1.125	\$31,421	15.11	\$34,261	16.47
5	1.150	\$32,119	15.44	\$35,022	16.84
6	1.175	\$32,817	15.78	\$35,783	17.20
7	1.200	\$33,516	16.11	\$36,545	17.57
8	1.225	\$34,214	16.45	\$37,306	17.94
9	1.235	\$34,493	16.58	\$37,610	18.08
10	1.250	\$34,912	16.78	\$38,067	18.30
12	1.260	\$35,191	16.92	\$38,372	18.45
14	1.275	\$35,610	17.12	\$38,829	18.67
19	1.310	\$36,588	17.59	\$39,894	19.18
24	1.345	\$37,565	18.06	\$40,960	19.69

ΙΕΔD

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

CAFETERIA (2018-2019) - \$0.50/hour

		CAFETERIA		HEAD		H.S.	
		SUPERVISOR		COOK 190		COOK 190	
		190 DAYS	HOURLY	DAYS 6.5	HOURLY	DAYS 6	HOURLY
EXP.	INDEX	8 HR/DAY	RATE	HR/DAY	RATE	HR/DAY	RATE
0	1.000	\$20,447	\$13.45	\$15,425	\$12.49	\$13,335	\$11.70
1	1.050	\$21,470	14.12	\$16,197	13.11	\$14,002	\$12.28
2	1.070	\$21,879	14.39	\$16,505	13.36	\$14,269	\$12.52
3	1.090	\$22,288	14.66	\$16,814	13.61	\$14,535	\$12.75
4	1.110	\$22,696	14.93	\$17,122	13.86	\$14,802	\$12.98
5	1.130	\$23,105	15.20	\$17,431	14.11	\$15,069	\$13.22
6	1.140	\$23,310	15.34	\$17,585	14.24	\$15,202	\$13.34
7	1.150	\$23,514	15.47	\$17,739	14.36	\$15,335	\$13.45
8	1.170	\$23,923	15.74	\$18,048	14.61	\$15,602	\$13.69
9	1.180	\$24,128	15.87	\$18,202	14.74	\$15,736	\$13.80
10	1.190	\$24,332	16.01	\$18,356	14.86	\$15,869	\$13.92
12	1.200	\$24,537	16.14	\$18,510	14.99	\$16,002	\$14.04
14	1.220	\$24,946	16.41	\$18,819	15.24	\$16,269	\$14.27
19	1.250	\$25,559	16.82	\$19,282	15.61	\$16,669	\$14.62
24	1.280	\$26,172	17.22	\$19,744	15.99	\$17,069	\$14.97

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

 ${\sf NOTE-Basis}$ for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

CAFETERIA (2018-2019) - \$0.50/hour

JRLY
TE
.70
2.28
2.52
2.75
2.98
3.22
3.34
3.45
3.69
3.80
3.92
1.04
1.27
1.62
1.97
3 3 3

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

SECRETARIES (2018-2019) - \$0.50/hour

		12		9.5		11	
		MONTH		MONTH		MONTH	
		260				233	
		DAYS	HOURLY	203 DAYS	HOURLY	DAYS	HOURLY
		8				8	
EXP.	INDEX	HR/DAY	RATE	8 HR/DAY	RATE	HR/DAY	RATE
0	1.000	\$23,729	\$11.41	\$18,574	\$11.44	\$21,284	\$11.42
1	1.050	\$24,916	\$ 11.98	\$19,503	\$ 12.01	\$21,370	\$ 11.46
2	1.075	\$25,509	\$ 12.26	\$19,967	\$ 12.30	\$22,880	\$ 12.27
3	1.100	\$26,102	\$ 12.55	\$20,432	\$ 12.58	\$23,412	\$ 12.56
4	1.125	\$26,695	\$ 12.83	\$20,896	\$ 12.87	\$23,944	\$ 12.85
5	1.150	\$27,289	\$ 13.12	\$21,361	\$ 13.15	\$24,477	\$ 13.13
6	1.175	\$27,882	\$ 13.40	\$21,825	\$ 13.44	\$25,009	\$ 13.42
7	1.200	\$28,475	\$ 13.69	\$22,289	\$ 13.72	\$25,541	\$ 13.70
8	1.225	\$29,068	\$ 13.98	\$22,754	\$ 14.01	\$26,073	\$ 13.99
9	1.235	\$29,306	\$ 14.09	\$22,939	\$ 14.13	\$26,286	\$ 14.10
10	1.250	\$29,661	\$ 14.26	\$23,218	\$ 14.30	\$26,605	\$ 14.27
12	1.260	\$29,899	\$ 14.37	\$23,404	\$ 14.41	\$26,818	\$ 14.39
14	1.275	\$30,255	\$ 14.55	\$23,682	\$ 14.58	\$27,137	\$ 14.56
19	1.310	\$31,085	\$ 14.94	\$24,332	\$ 14.98	\$27,882	\$ 14.96
24	1.345	\$31,916	\$ 15.34	\$24,983	\$ 15.38	\$28,627	\$ 15.36

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

 ${\sf NOTE-Basis}$ for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

AIDES (2018-2019) - \$0.50/hour

		188 DAYS	400
		HOURLY	188 DAYS
EXP.	INDEX	RATE	8 HR/DAY
0	1.000	\$11.67	\$17,558
1	1.050	\$12.26	\$18,436
2	1.065	\$12.43	\$18,699
3	1.070	\$12.49	\$18,787
4	1.073	\$12.53	\$18,840
5	1.075	\$12.55	\$18,875
6	1.078	\$12.58	\$18,928
7	1.080	\$12.61	\$18,963
8	1.095	\$12.78	\$19,226
9	1.105	\$12.90	\$19,402
10	1.110	\$12.96	\$19,490
12	1.120	\$13.08	\$19,665
14	1.140	\$13.31	\$20,016
19	1.170	\$13.66	\$20,543
24	1.200	\$14.01	\$21,070

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

BUS DRIVERS (2018-2019) - \$0.50/hour

	188 DAYS 4.5	HOURLY	DAILY
INDEX	HR/DAY	RATE	RATE
1.000	\$11,773	\$13.92	\$62.62
1.060	\$12,479	\$14.75	\$66.38
1.120	\$13,186	\$15.59	\$70.14
1.140	\$13,421	\$15.86	\$71.39
1.150	\$13,539	\$16.00	\$72.02
1.160	\$13,657	\$16.14	\$72.64
1.167	\$13,739	\$16.24	\$73.08
1.174	\$13,822	\$16.34	\$73.52
1.180	\$13,892	\$16.42	\$73.89
1.190	\$14,010	\$16.56	\$74.52
1.240	\$14,599	\$17.26	\$77.65
1.250	\$14,716	\$17.40	\$78.28
1.300	\$15,305	\$18.09	\$81.41
1.360	\$16,011	\$18.93	\$85.17
1.420	\$16,718	\$19.76	\$88.92

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

CUSTODIANS (2018-2019) - \$0.50/hour

LEAD REGULAR CUSTODIAN 260 DAYS **HOURLY** 260 DAYS HOURLY EXP. **INDEX** 8 HR/DAY RATE 8 HR/DAY RATE 0 \$28,970 1.000 \$13.93 \$31,494 \$15.14 1 1.050 \$30,418 14.62 \$33,068 15.90 2 1.075 \$31,142 14.97 \$33,856 16.28 3 1.100 \$31,867 15.32 \$34,643 16.66 4 17.03 1.125 \$32,591 15.67 \$35,431 5 1.150 \$33,315 16.02 \$36,218 17.41 6 1.175 \$34,039 16.37 \$37,005 17.79 7 1.200 \$34,764 16.71 \$37,793 18.17 8 1.225 \$35,488 17.06 \$38,580 18.55 9 1.235 \$35,778 17.20 \$38,895 18.70 10 1.250 \$36,212 17.41 \$39,367 18.93 12 1.260 \$36,502 17.55 \$39,682 19.08 14 1.275 \$36,936 17.76 \$40,155 19.31 19 1.310 \$37,950 18.25 \$41,257 19.84 24 1.345 \$38,964 18.73 \$42,359 20.36

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

CAFETERIA (2019-2020) - \$0.50/hour

		CAFETERIA		HEAD		H.S.	
		SUPERVISOR		COOK 190		COOK 190	
		190 DAYS	HOURLY	DAYS 6.5	HOURLY	DAYS 6	HOURLY
EXP.	INDEX	8 HR/DAY	RATE	HR/DAY	RATE	HR/DAY	RATE
0	1.000	\$21,207	\$13.95	\$16,043	\$12.99	\$13,905	\$12.20
1	1.050	\$22,268	14.65	\$16,845	13.64	\$14,600	\$12.81
2	1.070	\$22,692	14.93	\$17,166	13.90	\$14,879	\$13.05
3	1.090	\$23,116	15.21	\$17,487	14.16	\$15,157	\$13.30
4	1.110	\$23,540	15.49	\$17,807	14.42	\$15,435	\$13.54
5	1.130	\$23,964	15.77	\$18,128	14.68	\$15,713	\$13.78
6	1.140	\$24,176	15.91	\$18,289	14.81	\$15,852	\$13.91
7	1.150	\$24,388	16.04	\$18,449	14.94	\$15,991	\$14.03
8	1.170	\$24,812	16.32	\$18,770	15.20	\$16,269	\$14.27
9	1.180	\$25,025	16.46	\$18,930	15.33	\$16,408	\$14.39
10	1.190	\$25,237	16.60	\$19,091	15.46	\$16,547	\$14.52
12	1.200	\$25,449	16.74	\$19,251	15.59	\$16,686	\$14.64
14	1.220	\$25,873	17.02	\$19,572	15.85	\$16,964	\$14.88
19	1.250	\$26,509	17.44	\$20,053	16.24	\$17,381	\$15.25
24	1.280	\$27,145	17.86	\$20,535	16.63	\$17,799	\$15.61

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

CAFETERIA (2019-2020) - \$0.50/hour

ELEMENTARY			OTHER		
		COOK	CAFETERIA		
		190 DAYS	HOURLY	190 DAYS	HOURLY
EXP.	INDEX	6 HR/DAY	RATE	6 HR/DAY	RATE
0	1.000	\$13,446	\$11.79	\$13,905	\$12.20
1	1.050	\$14,118	12.38	\$14,600	\$12.81
2	1.070	\$14,387	12.62	\$14,879	\$13.05
3	1.090	\$14,656	12.86	\$15,157	\$13.30
4	1.110	\$14,925	13.09	\$15,435	\$13.54
5	1.130	\$15,194	13.33	\$15,713	\$13.78
6	1.140	\$15,328	13.45	\$15,852	\$13.91
7	1.150	\$15,463	13.56	\$15,991	\$14.03
8	1.170	\$15,732	13.80	\$16,269	\$14.27
9	1.180	\$15,866	13.92	\$16,408	\$14.39
10	1.190	\$16,001	14.04	\$16,547	\$14.52
12	1.200	\$16,135	14.15	\$16,686	\$14.64
14	1.220	\$16,404	14.39	\$16,964	\$14.88
19	1.250	\$16,807	14.74	\$17,381	\$15.25
24	1.280	\$17,211	15.10	\$17,799	\$15.61

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

SECRETARIES (2019-2020) - \$0.50/hour

		12		9.5		11	
		MONTH		MONTH		MONTH	
		260		203		233	
		DAYS	HOURLY	DAYS	HOURLY	DAYS	HOURLY
		8		8		8	
EXP.	INDEX	HR/DAY	RATE	HR/DAY	RATE	HR/DAY	RATE
0	1.000	\$24,769	\$11.91	\$19,386	\$11.94	\$22,216	\$11.92
1	1.050	\$26,008	\$ 12.50	\$20,356	\$ 12.53	\$23,327	\$ 12.51
2	1.075	\$26,627	\$ 12.80	\$20,840	\$ 12.83	\$23,882	\$ 12.81
3	1.100	\$27,246	\$ 13.10	\$21,325	\$ 13.13	\$24,438	\$ 13.11
4	1.125	\$27,865	\$ 13.40	\$21,810	\$ 13.43	\$24,993	\$ 13.41
5	1.150	\$28,485	\$ 13.69	\$22,294	\$ 13.73	\$25,548	\$ 13.71
6	1.175	\$29,104	\$ 13.99	\$22,779	\$ 14.03	\$26,104	\$ 14.00
7	1.200	\$29,723	\$ 14.29	\$23,264	\$ 14.32	\$26,659	\$ 14.30
8	1.225	\$30,342	\$ 14.59	\$23,748	\$ 14.62	\$27,215	\$ 14.60
9	1.235	\$30,590	\$ 14.71	\$23,942	\$ 14.74	\$27,437	\$ 14.72
10	1.250	\$30,961	\$ 14.89	\$24,233	\$ 14.92	\$27,770	\$ 14.90
12	1.260	\$31,209	\$ 15.00	\$24,427	\$ 15.04	\$27,992	\$ 15.02
14	1.275	\$31,581	\$ 15.18	\$24,718	\$ 15.22	\$28,325	\$ 15.20
19	1.310	\$32,448	\$ 15.60	\$25,396	\$ 15.64	\$29,103	\$ 15.61
24	1.345	\$33,315	\$ 16.02	\$26,075	\$ 16.06	\$29,880	\$ 16.03

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

 ${\sf NOTE-Basis}$ for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

AIDES (2019-2020) - \$0.50/hour

		188 DAYS	400
		HOURLY	188 DAYS
EXP.	INDEX	RATE	8 HR/DAY
0	1.000	\$12.17	\$18,310
1	1.050	\$12.78	\$19,226
2	1.065	\$12.97	\$19,500
3	1.070	\$13.03	\$19,592
4	1.073	\$13.06	\$19,647
5	1.075	\$13.09	\$19,683
6	1.078	\$13.12	\$19,738
7	1.080	\$13.15	\$19,775
8	1.095	\$13.33	\$20,050
9	1.105	\$13.45	\$20,233
10	1.110	\$13.51	\$20,324
12	1.120	\$13.64	\$20,507
14	1.140	\$13.88	\$20,874
19	1.170	\$14.24	\$21,423
24	1.200	\$14.61	\$21,972

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

BUS DRIVERS (2019-2020) - \$0.50/hour

		188 DAYS 4.5	HOURLY	DAILY
EXP.	INDEX	HR/DAY	RATE	RATE
0	1.000	\$12,196	\$14.42	\$64.87
1	1.060	\$12,928	\$15.28	\$68.76
2	1.120	\$13,660	\$16.15	\$72.66
3	1.140	\$13,903	\$16.43	\$73.95
4	1.150	\$14,025	\$16.58	\$74.60
5	1.160	\$14,147	\$16.72	\$75.25
6	1.167	\$14,233	\$16.82	\$75.71
7	1.174	\$14,318	\$16.92	\$76.16
8	1.180	\$14,391	\$17.01	\$76.55
9	1.190	\$14,513	\$17.16	\$77.20
10	1.240	\$15,123	\$17.88	\$80.44
12	1.250	\$15,245	\$18.02	\$81.09
14	1.300	\$15,855	\$18.74	\$84.33
19	1.360	\$16,587	\$19.61	\$88.23
24	1.420	\$17,318	\$20.47	\$92.12

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

CUSTODIANS (2019-2020) - \$0.50/hour

LEAD REGULAR CUSTODIAN 260 DAYS HOURLY 260 DAYS HOURLY EXP. **INDEX** 8 HR/DAY RATE 8 HR/DAY RATE 0 \$30,010 1.000 \$14.43 \$32,534 \$15.64 1 1.050 \$31,510 15.15 \$34,160 16.42 2 1.075 \$32,260 15.51 \$34,974 16.81 3 1.100 \$33,011 15.87 \$35,787 17.21 4 1.125 \$33,761 16.23 \$36,601 17.60 5 1.150 \$34,511 16.59 \$37,414 17.99 6 1.175 \$35,261 16.95 \$38,227 18.38 7 1.200 \$36,012 17.31 \$39,041 18.77 8 1.225 \$36,762 17.67 \$39,854 19.16 9 1.235 \$37,062 17.82 \$40,179 19.32 10 1.250 \$37,512 18.03 \$40,667 19.55 12 1.260 \$37,812 18.18 \$40,993 19.71 14 1.275 \$38,262 18.40 \$41,481 19.94 19 1.310 \$39,313 18.90 \$42,619 20.49 24 1.345 \$40,363 19.41 \$43,758 21.04

NOTE – Every employee at 25 years and beyond will receive an additional \$130 per year

NOTE – Basis for pay in cafeteria and secretary classifications is yearly amount, other data for comparative use only.

NOTE – Basis for pay in aides' classification is the hourly rate, other data for comparative use only.

ARTICLE 23 ----- EMPLOYEE EVALUATION

- A. All classified employees will be evaluated at least annually by their immediate supervisor. The employee shall be notified in advance of the month the evaluation conference will occur.
- B. An evaluation will be completed at the end of the first ninety (90) days of employment for new employees and by April 30 of each year for all personnel.
- C. The supervisor will rate the employee on the basis of: work performance, abilities, professionalism, personal skills. Evaluation forms will be completed in triplicate, with an additional narrative report, if necessary.
- D. After completing the evaluation form, the supervisor will:
 - 1. Conduct a conference with the employee.
 - 2. Discuss with the employee:
 - a. The evaluation
 - b. The areas needing improvement.
- E. The supervisor and the employee will sign the evaluation form at the close of the conference.
- F. One (1) copy of the completed evaluation form will be included in the employee's personnel file and one (1) copy will be given to the employee.
- G. 1. Employees shall have the right, upon request, to review the contents of their personnel file and to receive a copy at Board expense of any documents contained therein. An employee shall be entitled to have a representative of the Union accompany him/her during such review. Once every four (4) years, an employee will have the right to indicate those documents and/or other materials in his/her file which he/she believes to be obsolete or otherwise inappropriate for retention. Said documents will be reviewed by an appropriate member of the Office of the Superintendent and if he/she agrees, they will be A disagreement over the question of obsolescence or inappropriateness will be subject to the

grievance procedure set forth herein and will be initiated at Level Two thereof.

- 2. No materials derogatory to an employee's conduct, service, character or personality will be placed in his/her personnel file unless the employee has had an opportunity to review the material. The employee will acknowledge that he/she has had the opportunity to review such material by affixing his/her signature to the copy to be filed, with the express understanding that such signature in no way indicates agreement with the contents thereof. The employee will also have the right to submit a written answer to such material and his/her answer will be reviewed by the Superintendent and attached to the file copy.
- 3. Although the Board agrees to protect, within the limits of the law, the confidentiality of personal references, and other similar documents contained in the personnel file, it will not establish separate "confidential" files.
- H. Any complaint regarding an employee made to any member of the administration by any parent, student or other person which is used in any manner in evaluating an employee will be promptly investigated and called to the attention of the employee. The employee will be given an opportunity to respond to and/or rebut such complaint.

ARTICLE 24 ----- DISCIPLINARY ACTION

Sequence of Progressive Discipline

The normal disciplinary procedure shall be as follows for all employees:

- Step 1: Counseling/written documentation of counseling in the personnel file within ten (10) work days of the alleged infraction.
- Step 2: Written warning letter.
- Step 3: Three (3) days suspension without pay.
- Step 4: Discharge

Although the above sequence will normally be followed, the Board may issue discipline at any step in the procedure if the seriousness of the situation requires it.

Procedures:

Disciplinary interviews and reprimands shall be made in private. For all disciplinary hearings or actions, an affected employee may, if he/she deems it necessary, request the presence of a representative of the Union; and when such a request is made, the hearing or action shall not proceed until the representative is in attendance. The Union agrees to provide representation in a timely fashion. The Union president will be notified in advance of any pending disciplinary interviews or reprimands.

The Superintendent will be involved at step 3 and step 4 of progressive discipline.

The above does not preclude the opportunity for a supervisor to confer at any time with an employee concerning corrective actions or procedural changes that will improve performance. Discipline may be grieved under Article 5.

ARTICLE 25 ----- EFFECTS OF THE CONTRACT

This agreement shall be in full force and effect from July 1, 2017 through and including June 30, 2020.

ARTICLE 26 ----- NOTIFICATION OF BOARD MEETINGS

The President of Local 450 shall receive advanced notification and the agenda for regularly scheduled meetings of the Sandy Valley Board of Education. A copy of the minutes including all financial information for regularly scheduled board meetings shall be available to the president of Local 450.

ARTICLE 27 ----- SMOKEFREE WORKPLACE

There will be no smoking or the use of any tobacco products in school buildings or on school grounds. The cost of nicotine patches for the employee shall be paid for by the Board.

ARTICLE 28 ----- ALCOHOL-DRUG TESTING

- A. Districts may include drug education awareness training as part of regular district in-service programs for all transportation employees. The Board's testing policy and federal Regulations, Subpart F, Alcohol Misuse and Controlled Substance Use Information (Part VII, p. 7513-7514), shall be given to affected employees. The employee shall sign a proof of receipt.
- B. The Supervisor who makes the determination that "reasonable suspicion" exists to test employees shall create a written report setting forth the specific observations relied upon to order the test. The Supervisor that makes the determination cannot also conduct the alcohol test.
- C. Random testing will be done during scheduled work time.
- D. The same laboratory shall be used for all testing except as specified in subsection G below. Upon request, the name of the laboratory shall be provided to the Association office at the beginning of each school year.
- E. Employees have a right to a hearing in order to provide the employee an opportunity to dispute any information and for the employer, prior to suspending the employee and/or ordering referral to evaluation, to provide an explanation. The employee is entitled to written charges and association representation.
- F. The Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) shall be selected by the employee from a list jointly agreed to by the Union and the Board.
- G. If the employee disputes a positive drug test result, he/she may request a split specimen within seventy-two (72) hours from the time of notification at Board paid expense. The drug test shall be done by a different laboratory and the GC/MS test shall be used. If the split specimen tests negative, the employee will be paid for any time lost during the 72 hours period.
- H. If the first specimen tests positive and the second specimen tests negative, this will be deemed to be the official result of the drug test.
- Any and all Board required Drug-Alcohol testing shall be paid by the Board.

- J. If the employee test positive on the alcohol (at .04 or above) and/or drug test, he/she will be suspended without pay until completion of assessment and treatment, if needed. At the conclusion of the assessment and/or treatment, the Superintendent may do one of the following:
 - 1. reinstate the employee to his/her original position
 - 2. suspend without pay for up to three days at the Superintendent's discretion
 - if the employee has more than five years of service and it is a first offense involving the violation of the drug/alcohol testing policy and no accident is involved, the employee may:
 - a. be assigned to a non-safety sensitive position if available and if qualified. Otherwise, the individual will be placed on a recall list for the first position available and for which he/she is qualified.
 - b. be terminated under 3319.081 O.R.C.
 - 4. If the employee has five years or less of service, or it is a second offense involving the violation of the drug/alcohol testing policy, or an accident is involved, the employee may be terminated after a hearing. The employee may challenge the termination at binding arbitration but only on the validity of the test results and not on mitigation of the penalty. This procedure, for circumstances covered by J. 4 shall prevail over that contained in 3319.081 O.R.C. and/or the applicable collective bargaining agreement.
- K. If the employee tests positive on the alcohol test (below .04) disciplinary action, if any:
 - shall be governed by 3319.081 O.R.C. and not under the terms of the collective bargaining agreement or
 - 2. may result in the employee being suspended without pay for up to three (3) days at the Superintendent's discretion.
- L. The employee must present to the Superintendent written evidence of completion of assessment and/or treatment. Any

assessment and/or treatment is the personal responsibility of the employee as provided by his/her health care coverage.

Summary of Drug/Alcohol Amendment

below .04 .04+/positive drug

--disciplinary under 3319.081 O.R.C.

- --suspended without pay and not the contract
 - --assessment and treatment

--reinstate same position or

- --may suspend up to 3 days at Superintendent's discretion
- --suspend up to 3 days at Superintendent's discretion
- --more than 5 years & first offense & no accident:

reassigned if qualified/ available/recall terminated 3319.081

--5 years or less or second offense or accident:

> may terminate arbitrate only test, not penalty in lieu of 3319.081 O.R.C.

- M. Any employee who refuses to submit to required testing shall be prohibited from performing or continuing to perform his/her duties. A refusal to submit to testing will be considered a positive test result.
- N. Alcohol-Drug Testing shall be paid at the employee's hourly rate for actual time including travel with a minimum of two (2) hours pay.

ARTICLE 29 ---- LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

A committee composed of three (3) representatives of OAPSE and three (3) representatives of the Administration shall meet within a reasonable time upon the request of either party.

ARTICLE 30 ---- QUALITY OF WORK INCENTIVE

- A. Each bargaining unit member shall receive a Quality of Work Incentive payment under the following terms:
 - \$200 No days absent during the contract year.
 - \$150 One (1) day absent during the contract year.
 - \$125 Two (2) days absent during the contract year.
- B. This shall apply to any absence except Professional Leave, death in the immediate family up to three (3) days and Assault Leave. The payment to each bargaining unit member shall be made prior to July 1.

ARTICLE 31

Union members shall be paid \$25.00 at the end of the 2016-2017 fiscal year.

Union members shall be paid \$25.00 at the end of the 2017-2018 fiscal year.

Union members shall be paid \$25.00 at the end of the 2018-2019 fiscal year.

Union members shall be paid \$25.00 at the end of the 2019-2020 fiscal year.

ARTICLE 32

Each new employee shall be given the information packet provided by the Union at the time of hire.

The Board shall supply the Union with a list of new employees as requested and the list shall include:

- 1. Name of the new employee
- 2. Date of hire
- 3. Classification
- 4. Job location
- 5. Email
- 6. Address
- 7. Phone number

As requested, a complete updated employee listing shall be sent to the union.

AGREEMENT

This Agreement, made and entered into this eighteenth day of April, 2016, by and between the Sandy Valley Board of Education and the Ohio Association of Public School Employees, Local 450, for and on behalf of the employees in the bargaining unit set forth in Article 1 of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by their duly authorized representatives, have executed this Agreement on the day and the year written above.

For the Ohio Association of Public School Employees Local 450

President

date

Superintendent

of Education

For the Sandy Valley Board

Team Member date

- acare zoor

date

Team Member

date